The meeting was called to order by President Stephen Shurgot at 7:08 pm.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the President

# ROLL CALL: REV. DOROTY REEVES, absent; KAREN PETERSON, absent; LINDA KIRK, present; SANDRA SMITH, present; PAULA SHURGOT, present; JOHN THOMAS, present; STEPHEN SHURGOT, present; MAYOR GREGORY HAKUB was absent.

**S.SHURGOT:** After receiving the June minutes one of the citizens pointed out there was an error. The correction would be we talked about painting lines around Herman Avenue, the minutes say they are completed and they have not yet been completed.

**J. THOMAS:** Page 7 under old business, I mentioned about the issue with the compressor downstairs. The foreman wants to get a compressor at Home Depot for the approximate cost of \$800. I made the motion but in the motion it says generator, it's a compressor.

# J. THOMAS/ S. SMITH MOTION TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 6, 2017 MEETING WITH CORRECTIONS. MEMBERS VOTED APPROVAL, 5-0.

# **PETITIONS & MEMORIALS**

**S. ZIBRAT, 804 AIRBRAKE:** I have a problem with the stop signs on 2<sup>nd</sup> and Middle Avenue the one coming down off of the hill. Trucks have been flying down from and there's a lot of traffic. The kids are riding bikes and they are going to get hit because there isn't a stop down there. In fact there's not even a stop on 3<sup>rd</sup> Street. The other thing I wanted to know is about the sign and sidewalk that is painted yellow across from St Jude Parking lot. Isn't somebody going to paint that black because that's illegal isn't it?

**S. SHURGOT:** It's my understanding that is illegal. We did talk to the street department about painting it black. There's not even a curb cutout there for a driveway, there's a curb. The engineer can correct me but up on Westinghouse, it used to be an old store, but it's an apartment building now. The gentleman wants to park his car in his grass so he took it upon himself to put a sign "Do Not Block Driveway" and painted the curb yellow. It's not a curb cutout or a driveway. I believe the police and our street department are aware of it and we were going to paint the curb when they get the paint out.

**P. SHURGOT:** Didn't you have Jesse go look at that also.

**S. SHURGOT:** Yes COG went up and said to paint it black. I didn't send Dave up but there's a procedure for them to do that.

**D. GILLILAND:** They have to have a permit to put in a driveway. We would have to review that to make sure it's far enough away from corners, and it's not going to interfere with anything.

**S. VOLPE 250 CARD:** I have a few things and I'm kind of ticked off. 1<sup>st</sup> the 100 block of Card Avenue where the wall is. Is the borough going to do anything about that wall?

**S. SHURGOT:** We applied for a grant to fix it

**G. EVASHAVIK:** We applied for a CITF grant for that wall which is still pending as far as I know. That wall and also the Sprague wall and several other projects. The grant application goes to the County and they

prioritize which ones they want from all the counties and they send them to Harrisburg and they, make the final decision. It takes a while to get them.

**S. VOLPE:** I was wondering because I got a notice in the mail to fix my wall and it's not cheap. I wanted to have a meeting with the code enforcer and I never got the meeting with him on certain things. I met him in January when he wrote me up for peeling paint on my garage. I handed him a paint brush and a can of paint and he laughed at me and said he just wanted me to be aware of it. It's the middle of winter so what happens a month ago I got a citation in the mail for it.

**S. SHURGOT:** I talked to him about the citations before you went on vacation and when you're ready to meet with him give me a call and I will have him meet with you. Friday I will make sure he's available.

**S. VOLPE:** In the meantime I thought it was a coincidence that they work for Turtle Creek Valley COG and the garage is right next to the Directors fathers' house. As I got a notice in January so did the neighbor on the other side and 2 weeks after that they put the house up for sale. Now the Borough road up there, Lydia Street, nothing ever gets done. I called up in the winter time when it was Icey. Are the street department people getting the message and they're not doing something or is council total blowing me off and they're not doing anything.

**S. SHURGOT:** We have a new street foreman; the other person was given directions and not following them. I did talk to Mr. Thompson about getting some reclaim and millings and he said the next time he's in town he will call me and get a truck load up there. He hasn't called me yet but I will follow up on that.

**S. VOLPE:** I was just wondering cause all these years I brought it up and nobody did anything so I didn't know if council was blowing me off or the street guys were blowing me off. Now if they didn't do it something should have been done to them.

L. KIRK: The street catch basin up by him to

**S. SHURGOT:** After Election Day Steve took me around and I cam down and saw Michael and said you got to get that cleaned off because it's filled up. We can't have it filled or its going to cause us more problems.

**S. VOLPE:** If you guys want to see pictures of the the street department people going down the whole block blowing leaves up onto my property. There's pictures her of when they come straight up Lydia and plow right to that little sewer there. They stopped and backed up so that a borough road and that what they were doing. Another thing, what ever happened to Sean Kerrigan and the garbage and taxes?

**S. SHURGOT:** We are going to be taking him to court for the garbage; the taxes are in the process. He had set up agreement to make payment and then stopped so we instructed the garbage to take him to court

**S. VOLPE:** So this Friday I have a meeting with you and Jesse.

**S. SHURGOT:** I'll call him tomorrow and if he's free we will have the meeting.

**S. VOLPE:** who's handling this?

**S. SHURGOT:** Somebody else is doing the occupancy inspections and he's still the Code Enforcement Officer. They have another guy assigned to the building occupancy inspections and CEA's still our building inspector. If the house passes we could have 3 inspectors in town.

**M. MEIGHAN 4<sup>th</sup> STREET NV:** I'm here in regards to property I have at Card and Station. My tenant is complaining about 116 Card Avenue and I know I brought that up so I went into the minutes from February and I did bring it up. They are in a house that did not pass inspection nor do they have occupancy permits. I called Louise and she said she doesn't handle that. Also, I called Mr. Hussey in regards to them passing the fire inspection. He said the last time he did that in February they did not pass. He is unaware if they had another inspection since then. That's a pretty hefty violation there. My tenants are saying that it sounds like domestics. I guess before kids were shooting out windows then they moved and didn't get a new occupancy but these people moved in and it sounds like a domestic. All I can do as a landlord is call the police and they should investigate because that's here say. So I was concerned #1 they don't have to follow any of the rules that I have to follow. No occupancy, no house inspection, or fire inspection. I appreciate everything Mr. Hussey does. I also said in February "did Mr. Kerrigan pay any of the dues that he owes for garbage" You said we are in the process of handling the whole lump sum, garbage and taxes.

**S. SHURGOT:** We tried to file a lump sum for the total garbage that he owes us and we found out the legal system will not permit that. We have to go through each property one by one and file a lien which we can't afford to do. So we're going to take him to the magistrate and hope to get satisfaction there.

**M. MEIGHAN:** You haven't done that in 6 months. This has been historically for years we've been bringing it up the same things. And it's on record today. Has he paid any garbage fees Mr. Thomas?

**S. SHURGOT:** Ms. Meighan at the last meeting we explained to the people in the audience that we are at a big disadvantage when you ask questions that you asking cause we don't have that sitting on the top of our tongue. If you need information like that get it to the secretary a week or two before the meeting and I can give you a better answer.

**M. MEIGHAN:** okay because Mr. Thomas didn't receive a report for January. He did make payment in November and December and I was just wondering if he had any information but then do I write the letter to ask this question?

**S.SHURGOT:** If you're going to ask questions and you want information on it. We all pay here. It cost us \$29,000 to close that building. To follow the rules isn't cheap.

**M. MEIGHAN:** While that \$29,000 could of paid for that park across town. My concern right now if you could do something about it is the property **at** 116 Card Avenue.

**T. FRYDRICH 265 Welsh:** With Mr. Kerrigan has anybody done any work to find out if he defaulted on his mortgages.

**S. SHURGOT:** The only person I talked to was the code officer. We didn't see any real estate transfers or anything.

**T. FRYDRICH:** This has a lot to do with garbage. Who is now responsible for the garbage bills for the properties he defaulted on?

### G. EVASHAVIK: The owner

**T. FRYDRICH:** But he's not paying. The people are paying their rent to a new agency. They were notified by mail that the mortgages were defaulted and the rent check goes to somebody else now. Is he still responsible for the same garbage bills that he hasn't been paying before or is the renter responsible now. G. EVASHAVIK: The titled owner of the property, I assume is still he, is responsible for paying those garbage fees. He can make an agreement in the lease and charge them for that but it's the property owner.

**T. FRYDRICH:** The one property I'm interested in there is nothing in the lease and the bill goes to him now would that change cause he defaulted on the mortgage or is he still responsible for it. It's the same problem that you have right now. He's not paying the garbage bills and if somebody could find out how many properties he actually defaulted on

**G. EVASHAVIK:** Most cases there are no public record of that. If I had a mortgage on my house and I defaulted on it unless the mortgage company starts a mortgage foreclosure on me to take title of the property there's no public record.

T. FRYDRICH: Would the company that's collecting the rent now know that?

**G. EVASHAVIK:** No that he didn't pay to them, sure. They would only know about their own properties that are under agreement with them. There is no public record about private agreement mortgage payment; it's not a public record. The only way we can find out is again if they take it to the final step and file a mortgage foreclosure to take back title of the property which could take a year or more. Sometimes they don't do that or take it to the final step, they don't want to own it because then they become responsible. You have a property that's not in the greatest condition and the mortgage company or banks not being paid they might start the mortgage foreclosure but they have to take it to the final step to get title of the property back from the person that owned it and they never go that far because they dot want to be responsible for everything that goes with it.

**T. FRYDRICH:** The 2<sup>nd</sup> part of this does the street department have any set schedule that they use every week.

**P. SHURGOT:** yes we did try to institute that so far the new foreman has not like our ideas so I'm going to re talk to him about it and tell him we want it done our way.

**T. FRYDRICH:** Not necessarily the whole town but main streets in town to keep them clean

**P. SHURGOT:** We talked to him about that, we actually had a whole group here. I'm going to go over it with him again.

**T. FRYDRICH:** It doesn't take that long if you have a set schedule to do it.

**P. SHURGOT:** I understand and that's what we're trying to institute even though we don't have the ward system here anymore. We're going to divide it up as the old wards and do one ward a day, then the last day he can get major projects done.

**S.SMITH:** One of the things that Chris had expressed to us was that the ward system will work but not necessarily right now because of the grass cutting. When he has that trailer and all the equipment loaded up he likes to cut grass. We tried to tell him some of the wards are smaller than others and there's less grass to be cut

**P. SHURGOT:** We also don't have a laborer, which will be in my report, to help him out and the summer workers are both seniors so their doing senior like going on college visits. He's really been by himself a lot so were working on that tonight.

**T. HICKMAN 814 Airbrake:** I know we have a lot pf problem over on the north side of town, Middle and Airbrake Avenues, a lot of junk but the lower end of Middle and Airbrake the property owners keep up their properties quite nicely except for the parking lot on Middle Ave between 2<sup>nd</sup> and 3<sup>rd</sup> street. There's been a car that's been parked there with a canopy over it and bricks holding it down. I don't know if there is an ordinance doesn't permit this but I know in the back yard he has 2 other cars that have been there over 30 years.

**S.SHURGOT:** When North Versailles was here they checked the cars registrations and it was good at that time. As for the cars in the yard is that the 900 block on the right?

**T. HICKMAN:** It belongs to the person that lives on 2<sup>nd</sup>. Now the weeds are growing up all over that lot and I understand that it belongs to you people. I would appreciate it if something was done about it. Then there's a truck at Dorr's that hasn't been moved in months and there's a back door that is broken and a side panel that is broken and it really looks a mess. I would appreciate if something was done.

# **INSPECTOR KEARNS:** is it on his lot?

**T. HICKMAN:** It's on his lot and there's a new sticker but it's a piece of junk.

**P. LIVEROTTI AIRBRAKE AVE:** We put a lot of money into that trail down there when are we going to take care of the forest there?

**P. SHURGOT:** Again that's on my list and I talked to the street foreman about. I told the previous foreman to do this and he opted not to take care of it. I have the new on going to it and I will check with him and see when he's going to get to it. I agree every time I drive down Airbrake Avenue I say this is ridiculous. I told them in the fall and the spring to get rid of the sumacs when you have time before there were weeds there. So I agree because it looks beautiful when they're not there.

**T. TREHOS MIDDLE AVE:** I spoke last month about putting a sign up at Patton and Watkins about the blind curve and children at play. I noticed that there is no speed limit sign there. Is there any way we can include that with the sign.

### **N. RONILLO:** why don't we have a curfew?

**S. SHURGOT:** We have a curfew we don't have a horn. 10:00 is curfew and the police will enforce it.

**N. RONILLO:** Kids are riding their bikes at like 10:30p.m. There are about 25 kids that play on Avenue U, Watkins Avenue, Middle Avenue and they go in and out of all the streets every which way, someone's going to get killed while playing football right behind my house.

**S. SHURGOT:** I saw the inspector taking notes so he will handle it.

N. RONILLO: I ASKED Jess about Holy Angles Church and how filthy it is has anything been done?

**S. SHURGOT:** I don't know if he wrote letters or not. I don't have that information. I can check for you.

**N. RONILLO.** Another thing, last year I showed Louise pictures of the rats on Pat Mews Drive from Sandy feeding the birds. Well now I have rat droppings in the back of my yard cause she's feeding the birds on Avenue U and the guy on the other side of me is throwing chicken bones off his deck. Where are the rats coming from?

**S. SMITH:** Nancy I have never seen rats over on Avenue U.

**N. RONILLO:** I have pictures from last year. I'll call the Health Department.

**E. BARRET, HERMAN AVE:** Will the workers be painting the lines on Herman Avenue.

**P. SHURGOT:** that's on their list to do. I'm trying to get him to get working but he's been by himself a lot.

**E.BARRET:** Mr. Graff isn't doing much, we tried to walk across the back of his lot and his hedges are very high. So is the school. They put all those nice bushes in there and their all over grown.

**T. FRYDRICH:** On the monthly code violations but is anything being gained monetarily for the Borough? There are a couple particular ones, not mentioning addresses, but the same thing is there for years and nothings ever done with it. I just wonder if there is some way to keep tabs on the violations.

**S. SHURGOT:** They have a computer program that they use that ties everything together so we can track that now before we couldn't

**T.FRYDRICH:** Is there borough itself realized any monetary gains from this or are these violations really being corrected.

**S. SHURGOT:** I know the violations are being corrected. I know there are still high weeds but this is the lease I've seen in years. I can tell you the property across from Coochies house with the weeds and the oldest house in Wilmerding both look like crap and I don't know why nothings been done with that I know who the owner of one property is but owner seems responsible and it looks like weeds are growing everywhere.

**T. FRYDRICH:** The appearance on the street which is the first thing somebody sees when they come into the town. There's a couple things that have been on the sidewalks and you can't get past them, they're that bad, but they've been that way for ages and nothings ever done them.

**J. HARTZELL:** I talked with Jesse today. They do have a program that says citations issued but it doesn't show up on the report and to find out if they've been fined you can go on the website ujsportal.pacourts.us. It doesn't show up on the reports but he can view it on the computer so he's going to try and fix that program.

R. CUNNUNGHAM 120 MIDDLE AVE: When it says compliance date mean. 118 Middle Ave

**S. SHURGOT:** I don't have an answer for that I can tell you what I think. They went there on the 30<sup>th</sup>; they were given till the 10<sup>th</sup> to comply. If they didn't comply they would take the next step. Ms. Kirk can you help with that one. On June 30 and July 10<sup>th</sup> is says received multiple disruptive conduct reports. Would that be the 979 ordinance and what do we do with them.

**G. EVASHAVIK:** That ordinance mandates that the landlord have a lease with the tenant and they have to behave in an appropriate manner, if they don't it's a violation. If the violation is reported forum, then the landlord had to fill out a report to tell us what actions they've taken so they communicate with the tenant and ask them to refrain from the disruptive conduct. Then there are steps that have to be followed. If those steps aren't followed then eventually the ordinance mandates the landlord to evict the tenant. Thant's the process.

**M. MEIGHAN:** The woman asked a question about repeat offenders, I know I received a code violation once and it says in the letter that they will take you to the magistrate. So Mr. Frydrych asked so many of these repeat offenders and would there be a record or number of people that actually go to the magistrate office and they were fined or tis it just printed up to scare people?

**S. SHURGOT:** COG should have that.

**M. MEIGHAN:** I think it would be interesting to see how many people go to the magistrate and are we getting any money for the borough cause if there's no bite in these letters then why send them. Wouldn't that have an effect on insurance? I think the more run down and dilapidated that would cause Wilmerding's fire insurance to go up.

**A. HUSSEY:** Some part of it but there's more to it than just that.

**M. MEIGHAN:** I would like to see a record of how many actually do go to the magistrate.

**L. KIRK:** I had called Jesse about anther address and he had never got back to me so when I call him back I will ask to see if he can get the magistrates report.

**R. CUNNINGHAM:** The houses of 124, 126, 128, you can't come up the alley. Grass overgrown in the alley way. You can't come up that alley and I'm afraid to come up the front street because the weeds are overgrown. I have to walk up the street.

# **CORRESPONDENCE**

1. We received a quote from Michael Smith for the railings in front of the Borough Building, Middle Avenue, and 1sr Street Hill.

**S. SHURGOT:** There was one question on the one for 1<sup>st</sup> street hill. That's the guardrail that the truck hit when it went into the creek and that's being handled by insurance. So the bid to replace the other 4 properties would be \$2975.00.

J. THOMAS: are we required to do it?

**L. KIRK:** We had told Chris that we thought the one from Airbrake to Middle was dangerous.

**S. SHURGOT:** when we asked for the bid we asked for the one on Airbrake to Middle and the one on Station Street hill so I don't know where the other ones came from.

P. SHURGOT: is there money to repair this?

**S. SMITH:** I would make a motion to receive and file at this point.

# S. SMITH/ L. KIRK TO RECEIVE AND FILE BID. MEMBERS VOTED 5-0.

2. We received a letter from Agape Christian Fellowship Community Center in regards to their annual block party. It is scheduled for Saturday August 5<sup>th</sup> from 11:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.

# P.SHURGOT/S. SMITH TO ALLOW THE STREET TO BE BLOCKED FOR BLOCK PARTY ON AUGUST $5^{TH}$ FROM 11A.M. – 8P.M. MEMBERS VOTED APPROVAL 5-0.

# **COMMITTEE REPORT**

**PUBLIC SAFTEY – L. KIRK:** for the month of June Eastern Area Ambulance responded to 53 calls and had 34 transports. Their average response time for emergences was 7.2 minutes and for non-emergences it was 9.5 minutes.

For the half year they responded to 294 calls and had 189 transports. Their average response time for emergences was 7.1 minutes and for non-emergences was 8.6 minutes.

The fire department responded to 32 calls, 16 were in town and 16 were out of town and some work details. They attended the Wilmerding fair and parade, washed the YMCA parking lot after the storm, and they had training for crane rescue at Keystone Commons.

**INSPECTOR KEARNS:** for the month of June we had 402 events. A brief summary of the calls were as follows: 2 abandoned vehicles, 10, animal complaints, 6 assaults, 58 assist to other police departments, 7 criminal mischief, 1 curfew/loitering, 5 disorderly conduct, 9 domestics, 15 local ordinance, 2 missing persons, 6 motor vehicle crashes, 6 narcotics, 2 overdoses, 1 strong arm robbery, 87 traffic stops, and 15 warrants. There were 42 arrests made 9 for narcotics, 5 warrants, 6 disorderly conduct, and 2 for retail theft.

**S. SHURGOT:** I just want to make a public comment about our fire department. The other night the fire on the corner of Clara Street and Welsh, I think the fire department did a fantastic job. I was coming back from Monroeville and saw this white plume of smoke that I thought was a tree. When I got to the red light I thought the Castle or the school was on fire. The fire department was having their monthly meeting and had not been notified yet so I was going to stop and they started running to the trucks. I parked down on Westinghouse and walked up. They got there and attacked it very quickly. The fire started in the kitchen and rode up the back of the house. They were very expedient and there was a lot of damage to the house but they prevented a total loss. We complain when they don't do good and different things but hats off to the fire department, they did a great job that night.

**L.KIRK:** The report from June was added to the website so you can see the police reports for the first 6 months.

**PUBLIC WORKS - P. SHURGOT:** They did their weekly grass cutting and trash pickup. They set up for the fair and cleaned up after, cut the top and bottom strips of Sprague, cut top and bottom strips of Card, cleaned up after county horses, washed truck, cut vacant lots 126 Maple 448 Card 132 Card 153 Watkins, cleaned out Basins, removed leaves in Avenue U park, assisted YMCA with clean-up of parking lot, took down crime watch signs, removed large branch off of Orient, emailed picture to PA Beautiful and returned damaged cameras. They assisted the county police in identifying the person who destroyed the cameras. They sprayed curbs around the building, Sprague, Station, Card, Welsh, Pitcairn, and Frank. Removed a tree from at Avenue U and Allegheny Petroleum. We don't do private alleys, however this person called the mayor. We had a tree fall off

of Morningside across the alley behind Summit. They have a disabled child and the mayor had them just clean off so the cars can get through the alley. They cleaned out the viaduct, did some garage maintenance, changes lights for the new secretary, cut Ivy away from 5<sup>th</sup> Avenue sign, and were filing some pot holes.

**ENGINEER – D. GILLILAND:** Demolition of 401 and 409 Welsh Avenue will start the 1<sup>st</sup> week of August. The gas company is finished replacing the line on Wall Street, the water company is working there now and should be finished by the end of next week, at which the contractor will begin the road reconstruction work. We have 2 projects for which the borough got grants that will demolish 8 more houses before the end of the year.

**P. SHURGOT:** I have a question on the Wall Avenue. Right now they are doing just intermittent stops and blockages of that road correct? They are going to close that completely once they start the stones. So do we need to make a motion to make that a 2 way street at that block. How long do they have to get it done and what's the fine when they don't get it done.

**S. SHURGOT:** We already talked to the police about it and Caroline's going to send letters out to all the residents.

**D. GILLILAND:** well the liquidated damages are \$350.00 a day. I don't know off the top of my head the completion date, but whatever we gave them back when we gave them the notice to proceed is probably going to have to change because the gas company took way longer then they expected and the water company came back.

**S.SHURGOT:** its 4 – 6 weeks.

**P. SHURGOT:** if you can just make sure you go over that because if it goes over I want to start fining them.

# P. SHURGOT / L. KIRK TO MAKE THE 200 BLOCK OF WELSH AVENUE A 2 WAY STREET DURING THE LENGTH OF THE CONSTRUCTION. MEMBERS VOTED 5-0.

# **BOROUGH PROPERTY – S. SMITH:** Nothing at this time.

**SOLICITOR - G EVASHAVIK:** Mr. Gilliland talked about condemnations and one we still have to do. I prepared a notice of condemnation for 133 Watkins. We need to pick a date and get a court reporter. We did file municipal liens for the Faller building against Kerrigan and against Noreen Damico for 318 Miller Street. I complete a noise ordinance at the direction of council based on the input and sample given to us by county police. I have submitted that to council for review which makes it a violation for noise loud enough that can be audible to a person at a distance of 75 feet. That includes numerous sources and establishes a fine. Whenever you're satisfied with it the next step is a motion to advertise.

# S. SMITH/L. KIRK TO ADVERTISE THE NOISE ORDINANCE. MEMBERS VOTED 5-0.

**S. SHURGOT:** Going back a second, Louise with the rental license has collected \$22690.00. She levied and collected fine of \$1200.00 from people who didn't comply with the borough license. That's the first time I've ever heard of that happening so kudos to her.

# FINANCE – J/ THOMAS:

# J. THOMAS / P. SHURGOT TO PAY ALL THE AUTHORIZED BILLS. MEMBERS VOTED APPROVAL 5-0.

**J. THOMAS:** The real estate tax we collected approximately 75% of what we budgeted. It's still at face till the end of July.

**<u>RECREATION – P. SHURGOT</u>**: August 1<sup>st</sup> will be Nation Night Out in the park. Two for the Road will be playing from 7-9 and there will be light snacks.

**PLANING – REV. REEVES:** Nothing new. Mr. Simpson had been taken care off; he has to go through some procedures. I gave a report about the high rise getting a grant, has anyone signed off yet?

**S. SHURGOT:** We haven't received anything yet.

# OLD BUSINESS

None

# **NEW BUSINESS**

# P. SHURGOT / J. THOMAS TO HIRE JUSTIN MURPHY TO HELP CHRIS WITH THE UPKEEP OF THE TOWN AT A RATE OF \$12.00/HR WITH SINGLE MEMBER BENEFITS. MEMBERS VOTED 6-0.

**L. KIRK:** I have been in contact with the Assistant Superintendent so we could set up crime watch. She chose Monday July 17<sup>th</sup> for the 1<sup>st</sup> meeting. The flyers are in many of the businesses. It would be nice to see if there is a difference between this crime watch and the way it was with North Versailles. We will also be receiving crime watch signs.

**S. SHURGOT:** we presented a renewal contract with CEA and the solicitor reviewed the contract. He said it was okay and we can probably go ahead and adopt that contract pending the recommendations that they would have to meet

**J. THOMAS:** the fees they have, do we need to pass an amendment or change our ordinance so we may be able to charge a little more? Our motion was that we take on \$10 or \$15 onto whatever they charge to cover our office expenses.

# S. SMITH / REV. D. REEVES TO ACEPCT THE CEA CONTRACT PENDING RECOMMENDED CHANGES AS PER THE SOLICITOR. MEMBERS VOTED 6-0.

**S. SHURGOT:** the mayor was unable to make the meeting tonight but he wanted me to give an update on the camera program. All the wiring is in place we are just waiting on the installation of the cameras and the network set up. We did apprehend 4 people for illegal dumping up at the dump.

**P. LIVORETTI:** Is there any way we can get the minutes sooner.

**S. SHURGOT:** There was a little problem getting the stuff to the person. That's all been resolved and as soon as Caroline gets them done they will be put on.

**T. FRYDRICH:** with the Wall avenue project is there anyway they can put some no parking signs up at the end of the street for people to turn around.

**S. SHURGOT:** yes we can do that.

**R. CUNNINGHAM:** I'm very appreciative of the Allegheny County Police.

S. ZIBRAT: have they said anything about our bridge being painted?

**D. GILLILAND:** no, we met with them last week and they told that is on their schedule to do in 2021.

**S. SMITH:** they had in their possession a letter that I wrote in 2015 about working on those ramps. The guy talked to be and Dave can probably confirm this, they are not going to do anything because it is on the schedule for renovation.

Meeting adjourned at 8:18